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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as
Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as
Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) (the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited)

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
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Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited)

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  the adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 32 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Management Company Limited)

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 32 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility except that audit trail at database level to log any direct data changes has been enabled
starting from 3 February 2025. Except for the audit trail at the database level for the period till 3
February 2025, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the period for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with during the course of our audit. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, except for the
period for which the audit trail feature was not enabled.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:10%248W/W}100022

7.

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222615
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHXJ3068
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) () (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order
is not applicable.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@)  The Company is a service company, primarily rendering asset management services to mutual
fund schemes. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms
and limited liability partnership during the year. The Company has made investments and
granted loans to other parties.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to other parties as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
(Rs. in millions) nature of loans

Aggregate amount during
the year

Subsidiaries*® - - - -
Joint ventures® - - - -
Associates® - - - -
Others - - 0.55 -

Balance outstanding as
at balance sheet date
Subsidiaries™

Joint ventures*® - - - -
Associates* - - - -
Others* - - - -

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, during the year and the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal has been
stipulated and the repayments have been regular. There is no interest charged by the Company
on such loans given to its employees.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

v

(x) (a)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the company did not have any dues on account of duty of customs and Employees State
Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. Accordingly,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(xi) (@) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. As represented to us by
the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received under the vigil mechanism
established voluntarily by the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons con nected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 632.72 million in the current financial year and
Rs. 437.88 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset

Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:10}1248W/VY-100022

1

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHXJ3068
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Groww Asset
Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

T

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai ) Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHXJ3068
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Balance sheet

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 0.19 0.08
Trade receivables 4 24,26 13.06
Investments ] 1,794.49 1,730.77
Other financial assets 6 L27 8.05
Total financial assets 1,820.21 1,751.96
Non financial assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 5.79 2,51
Right-of-usc assets 8 - 17.38
Other non-financial assets 9 104.45 26.47
Current tax assets (net) 23 2.49 1.98
Total non-financial assets 112.73 48.34
Total assets 1,932.94 1,800.30
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 8 - 17.40
Trade payables

i. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 10 - 0.17

ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 10 146.28 120.11

small enterprises
Total financial liabilities 146.28 137.68
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 11 7.71 6.48
Other non-financial liabilities 12 7.69 9.69
Total non-financial liahilities 15.40 16.17
Total liabilities 161.68 153.85
Equity
Equity share capital 13 2,032.19 1,625.21
Other equity 14 (260.93) 21.24
Total equity 1,771.26 1,646.45
Total equity and liabilities 1,932.94 1,800.30
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Co. LLP

Chhitered Accduntants
Fifnl Registration Number; 101248 W/W-100022

T A

Rohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30,2025

" Date: June 30,2025
.\ 4

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls

Asset Management Company Limited)
CIN: U65991 K A2008PLC 180894
Qi [}tn

Ch\icf Executive Officer

Hars Mhish Ghel

Director Director
DIN: 05321547 DIN: 03067864

Place: Jaipur Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 30,2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025

[N 4
ih n Dive Pratik Lakhotia

C‘ZJ party Secretary Chief Financial officer
mbership No. : A26472

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025



Groww Assct Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Statement of profit and loss

(Al amounts ave in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Note
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
Fees and commission income 15A 27.58 19.42
Interest income 15B - 9.08
Net gain on fair value changes 16 141,84 86.74
Total revenue from operations 169.42 115.24
Other income 17 1.45 0.57
Total income 170.87 115.81
Expenses
Finance costs 18 1.27 1.60
Employee benefits expense 19 282.66 165.56
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 9.67 7.62
Other expenses 21 452.65 326.62
Total expenses 746.25 501.40
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (575.38) (385.59)
Tax expense
Current tax 22
(i) for current year - -
(ii) relating to earlier years - (0.24)
Deferred tax (credit)/ expense 22 - (7.55)
Total tax (credit)/expense - (7.79)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (575.38) (377.80)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans 0.19 (1.25)
Income tax relating to thesc items - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss), net of tax .19 (1.25)
Tatal comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (575.19) (379.05)
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face value: INR 10/- per share) 26
Basic eaming per share (3.15) (3.08)
Diluted earning per share (3.15) (3.08)
Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors
Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Intants Management Company Limited) Y
n Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U65991KA2008PLC180894 )
-—
M yj@/ : s
der _~Harsh Jai ffa
Director hief Executive Officer
Membership No, : 222515 DIN: 05321547 DIN: 03067864
Place: Mumbai Place: Jaipur Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025 ate: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025
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Roshay Dave - Pratik Lakhotia
Company Secretary Chief Financial officer

Membership No. : A26472

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Statement of changes in equity
(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2023 1,000,00
Issue of equity shares 625.21
As at March 31, 2024 1,625.21
Issue of equity shares 406.98
As at March 31, 2025 2,032.19
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
Securities Retained
Premium earnings
As at April 01,2023 - 10.50 10.50
Profit /(Loss) during the year - (377.80) (377.80)
Other comprechensive income/ (loss) - (1.25) (1.25)
Seccurities premium on issue of equity shares 389.79 - 389.79
As at March 31, 2024 389.79 (368.55) 21.24
Profit /(Loss) during the year - (575.38) (575.38)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) - 0.19 0.19
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 293.02 - 293.02
As at March 31, 2025 682.81 (943.74) (260.93)

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our reporl of even date attached
for BS R & Co. LLP
red Accountants

egistration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30,2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited)

CIN: U65991KA2008PLCI180894

sh”Jain
Director
DIN: 05321547

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 03067864

Place: Jaipur Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
te: Junc 30,2025 Date: Junc 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025
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Company Secretary Chief Financial officer
Membership No. : A26472

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (575.38) (385.59)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9.67 7.62
Net gain on fair value changes on mutual funds (141.84) (86.74)
Net gain on fair value changes on bonds - 15.50
Balance written back 0.23 -
Interest from fixed deposit - (3.56)
Interest from bonds - (5.52)
Interest on unwinding of security deposits (0.38) (0.31)
Finance costs 1.27 1.60
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (706.43) (457.00)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (12.00) (11.49)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 6.78 41.76
(Increase)/decrease in other non-financial assets (77.98) (25.15)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 26.26 119.55
Increase/(dccrease) in other financial liabilities - -
Increase/(decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (2.00) (28.32)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 1.42 4.63
Cash used in operations (763.95) (356.02)
Income taxes paid, net of refund (0.51) (7.33)
Net cash generated from/(used) in operating activities (A) (764.46) (363.35)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5.50) (3.51)
Fixed deposit placed - (739.20)
Redemption of fixed deposits - 1,049.20
Purchase of mutual funds (1,921.13) (3,891.29)
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund 1,999.26 2,345.17
Proceeds from sale of bonds - 580.87
Interest from fixed deposit - 3.56
Interest from bonds - 5.52
Net cash generated from/(used) in investing activities (B) 72.63 (649.68)
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities preimum) 700.00 1,015.00
Repayment for lease liabilities (6.79) (5.35)
Interest on lease liabilities (1.27) (1.60)
Net cash generated fram financing activities (C) 691.94 1,008.05
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 0.11 (4.98)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 0.08 5.06
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of the year 0.19 0.08
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Statement of cash flows

(All amownts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprisc:

Cash on hand

Balances with banks in current accounts

0.19

0.08

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 3)

0.19

0.08

Notes:

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out on the Tndian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) Statement of cash flows.

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accquntants
ifm Registratipn Number: 101248W/W-100022

ohit Alexander
artner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30,2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management
Company Limited)
CIN: U65991KA2008PLC180894
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Director Director Chief Executive Officer
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Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025

shan Dave Pratik Lakhotia
Company Sccretary Chief Financial officer
Membership No. : A26472
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Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known ag Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(AN amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
1. Corporate Information

Groww Asset Management Limited (‘the Company’) (earlier known Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited (“IAMCL”) as incorporated on 10th April 2008
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment
manager to Groww Mutual Fund ("the Fund"). The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') under SEBI (Mutual Fund) Regulations,
1996 as amended. The Company manages the investment portfolio of the Fund and provides various administrative services to the Fund and Trustee Company. The
registered office address of the Company is Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor,Survey No.16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, Bellandur,
Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103.

Pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated May 11, 2021, between Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
(“Company”) and Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (crstwhile Sponsor), and Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited for the acquisition of 100%
shareholding of Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited (“IAMCL") and Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited (“ITCL™), all the necessary approval was received
and accordingly, the Company paid an aggregate purchase consideration of INR 17,562 Lakhs (including cash and cash equivalents of INR 10,062 Lakhs) for the
acquisition of 100% share capital of TAMCL and ITCL and all the cquity shares stand to be transferred (Demat and physical) to Groww Invest Tech Private Limited
(formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) on May 03, 2023, and pursuant to this JAMCL and ITCL have become the wholly owned subsidiary of
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (formely known as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited) effective from May 03, 2023.

Subsequently, pursuant to share purchase agreement dated August 19, 2024 executed between Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known as Billionbrains
Garage Ventures Private Limited), Groww Invest Tech Private Limited and the Company, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known as Billionbrains
Garage Ventures Private Limited) acquired 100% of the share capital of Groww Assct Management Limited from Groww Invest Tech Private Limited.

2. Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the *Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division III of
Schedule 111 of the companies Act, as amended from time ta time that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilitics.
The financial statements arc approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on June 30, 2025,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/(Rs.), which is also its functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

a. Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount.

Ttems of property, plant and cquipment arc initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and dircctly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assels outstanding
at each reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and inslallation is completed
and asscls are ready for its intended use.

Ttems of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book wvaluc or net realisable
value and are shown separately in the financial statements, if any.




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amonnts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)
ii. Depreciation

Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule II of
the Act.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Management's estimate of useful life Useful life as per Schedule IT
Office Equipments 5 years 5 years

Laptop 3 years 3 years

Furnitures 10 years 10 years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date of
disposal. The residuval values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Improvements to leasehold premises are amortised over the lease term or useful lives of the assets, whichever is lower.
iii. De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Gains or losscs arising from de-recognition, disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and cquipment arc measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and arc recognised net, within “Other Income” or “Other Expenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year of derecognition, disposal or retirement.

b, Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will
flow to the Company. Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost atiributable to readying the asset for use. Intangible assets acquired separately
are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

i. Amortisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and is included in the statement of profit and
loss.

¢. Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue is measured at lransaction price (net of variable consideration, if any). Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expeets to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contraci(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets
out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the
customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates
the transaction price to cach performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company cxpects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying cach performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfics u performance obligation.
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:
(a)Income from fees and commission income is recagnised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of contract which is satisfied at a point in time

(b) The company has the right to consideration which is unconditional but an invoice for the same has not been raised accordingly it is classified as unbilled revenue
under trade receivable,
Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liabilities and adjusted against billing as per terms of the contract.
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)
i. Date of Recognition

Financial assels and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

ii. Initial Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Recognised financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilitics, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition of financial asscls or financial liabilitics at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

iii. Classification and Subsequent Measurement
A, Financial ussets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the Company classifies and measures
financial assets in the following categories :

a) Amortised cost: A financial assels is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit or
loss (FVTEL):
« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (‘Asset held to collect contractual cash flows'); and
« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal
amount outstanding,
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Interest income and impairment expenses arc recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss en derccognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through othcr comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial asscts that are held within a business model whose abjective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the asscts, (‘Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model') and contractual cash flows that arc SPPI, are subsequently
measured at FVOCL Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’), except interest { dividend
income which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instruments
however, in case of equily instruments it will be directly transferred to reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either designated,

are measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Company records investments in equity instruments and mutual funds at
FVTPL.

B. Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity Instrument - An cquity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group is recognised at the value of proceeds reccived, net of directly altributable transaction costs.

(b) Financial Liabilities - Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently determined
based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is also recognised in profit or loss. The

Group does not have any financial liability which are measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilitics are carricd at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad. For trade and other payables, the carrying amount approximales the fair value
duc to short maturity of these instruments,

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)

Level 1 : Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to
at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical
assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, arc derived from dircctly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire
period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unabservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

iv. Reclassification:
Financial assets and liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires,
disposes of, or terminates a business line or in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

v. Derecognition:

(A) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial asscts) is derecognised when:
+ The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVOCI).

(B) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or
loss.

vi, Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

vii. Impairment of financial assets:

A. Trade receivables
The Company applies the Ind AS 109 simplificd approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade
receivables,

The application of simplificd approach dacs not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting datc, right from its initial recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

B. Other Financial Asscts
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assct is written off (cither partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospeet of recovery. This is gencrally the
case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write - off, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

d. Employce Benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries and short-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Company hus u present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss at the undiscounted amount expected ta be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Company.

ii. Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is carlicr. The benefit vest after five years of continuous service.

The Cqmnany“fx g{a_h(li}ysgheme is a defined benefit plan. The Compuny’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimati
of futfire benefit that.fhe employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to determine its
the fa{f\lrfr:‘c of any pl }-\nss ts, if any, is deducted.
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amownis are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each
period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields
on Government Securitics as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from expericnce adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
ather comprehensive income, They arc included in retained carnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

iii. Provident fund

The contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan, The Company has no abligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

iv. Share based payment arrangements

The grant date fair value of equity-settled sharc-based payment arrangements granted to employees is measured by reference lo the fair value of the options using option
pricing model at the date on which the options are granted and generally recognised as an employee benefits expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
vesting period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the related service conditions at the vesting date,

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing model at the
date on which the options arc granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability to pay Ultimate Holding Company based on a cost recharge
arrangement,

e. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue
transactions are recognised in (he statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilitics that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

f. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the usc of an identificd asscts, the Company assess whether
(i) the contract involves the use of an identificd assets; (i) the Company has substantially all the cconomic benefits from use of the assels through the period of the leasc
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asscl.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it
is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the
lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. The right-of-use assels is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use
assels.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability al the present value o the lease payments that arc not paid at that date, The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. If that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liability has been included in borrowing and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows.

i. Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiarics are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

Material accounting policies (cont'd)

g. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is prabable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation, Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to effect current management estimates.

Contingent liabilitics arc not recognised but arc disclosed in the notes forming part of restated consolidated financial statements. A Contingent liability is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the restated consolidated financial statements.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurence or non-oceurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

h. Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in OCL

(i) Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax
comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty of
its realisation, supported by convincing evidence.

Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assels against liabilities representing current tax and where
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

j. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original malurities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cash and short-term deposits are considered integral part of the Company’s cash management.

j.  Bankbalances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents includes fixed deposits with banks with original maturitics of twelve months or less.




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)

k. Impairment of non-finuncial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an assct may be impaircd. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An
impairment loss is reversed (o the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had
previously been recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Tn determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

. Segment reporting

The ultimate holding company prepares the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108 on operating segments, the Company has not disclosed the
segments information in the standalone financial statements.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. The Board of directors who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments have been identified as the CODM.

m. Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit/loss attributable to the
equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity share holders after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period/year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

n. Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the cffects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

0, Business Comhination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the
Company. Identifiable asscts acquired and liabilitics assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. When the
Company acquires a business, il assess the financial assets and liabilitics assumed for appropriate classification and designation. In accordance with contractual terms,
economic circumstances, and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired and attributable to the owners of the Company is recorded as goodwill. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, which is measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of a non-controlling interest in the acquire. Transaction costs incurred in connection with
a business acquisition are expensed as and when incurred. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in
the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value is less than its carrying amount.

0. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management make estimates and assumplions that affect the application of
accounting policics and the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, income and expenscs. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting cstimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years. Tn particular, information
about arcas of significant cstimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are included below:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Tnformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the following notes:

(i) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amaortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts. Estimales may
change due lo lechnological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation and amortisation charges.

(ii) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-cmployment benefit obligations. Duc to complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)
(iii) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate, judgement is
exercised to determine the carrying values. The fair value of financial instruments that are unlisted and nolt traded in an active market is determined at fair values
assessed based on recent transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation donc by external appraisers cte., as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit losses on financial assels

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at amortized cost. At cach reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

(v) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of lemporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bascs. Deferred tax assets arc recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences could be utilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 22.

(vi) Provision and contingencies
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

(vii) Share based payments

Estimating fair valuc for share based payment requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model. The estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expeeted life of the option , volatility and dividend yicld and making assumptions about them. The assumptions
and models used for estimating fair value for share based payments transactions are discussed in Note 28 "Employee stock option plan" (ESOP).

(viii) Leases

In determining whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in the arrangement.

p. Operating cycle
Based on the time involved between acquistion of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has indentificd twelve months as its
operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

q. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and
leascback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. 01 April 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined
that it does not have any impact in its financial statements.
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Cash and cash equivalents

t Company Limited)

Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks - In current accounts 0.19 0.08
Total 0.09 008
Trade receivables
As al As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Unsccured, Considered good 24.26 13.06
Trade receivables- credit impared 2 =
Total 24.26 13.06

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or others officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade Recelvables Ageing

QOutstanding as at March 31, 2025 for following periods from date of transaction Total
Particulars Less than 6 month | 6 months - | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 2,38 - - 2.38
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Add: Unbilled revenue 21.88
Total 24,26
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 for following periods lrom date of transaction Total
Particulars Less than 6 month | 6 months - | year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables — considered good - - 0.81 - - 0.81
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Add: Unbilled revenue 12.25
Total 13.06
5 Investments
As at Asat

[

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in Mutual funds - quoted 1,792.03 1,728.31
Investment in equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income - unquoted
MF Utitities India Private Limited 1.98 198
AMC Repo Clearing Limited 0.48 048
Total 1,794.49 1,730.77
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 246 246
Aggregate amount of quoted investment and market value thereol 1,792.03 1,728.31
Other financial assets
Asat Asat

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
(Unsecured, considered good)
Rental deposit 1.27 4.18
Receivable from related pasties (refer note 27) - 293
Advances to employees - 0.94
Total 1,27 8.05

The space has been left blank intentionally
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indinbulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounty are in INR Mitlions unless otherwise stated)
8 Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset class consists of lease for a premise. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the assel.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (‘ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.

For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The company has not
recognised any short term leases.

Certain lease arrangements include the aption to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assels and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation,
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the
company. Lease liabilities are re-measured with & corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment on whether it will exercise an extension
or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments of INR 8.06 Millions (March 31, 2024: INR 6.95 million) have been classified as
cash flow generated from financing activity.

a) Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class

Particulars Leasehold Property
Balance as on April 01, 2024 17.39
Additions =

Derecognisation (9.94)
Depreciation (7.45)

Balance as on March 31, 2025 =

Particulars : Lensehold Property

Balance as on April 01, 2023 =

Additions . 24.00
Derecognisation -

Depreciation (6.62)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 17.38

b) Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At the commencement of the year 17.40 -
Additions - 22.75
Reduction in liability (10.61) -
Accretion of interest 1.27 1.60
Payments (8.06) (6.95)
Al the end of the year - 17.40
Current - 9.33
Non-current - 8.06
b) Maturity annlysis of lease liabilities
Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash flows March 31";;;5[ March 3I..:;;-:
Less than one year - 10.88
One to five years - 8.46
More than five years S -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities - 19.34
Lease linbilities included in the balance sheet - 17.40
¢) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Asat Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 1.27 1.60
Lease payments not included in lease liabilities 6.79 535
d) Amounts recognised in the stntement of cash Mows
Asat Asat
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1nk§@sl~@lﬂ for leases 8.06 6.95
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Other non-financial assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
(Unsecured, considered good)
Balances with government authorities 93.71 16.98
Prepaid expenses 9.74 9.25
Advances to supplicrs 1.00 0.24
Total 104.45 26.47
Trade payables
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 29) - 0.17
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Payable to related partics 40.95 40.63
- Other trade payable 105.33 79.48
Total 146.28 120.28
Trade Payables Ageing
As at March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction Total
Particul - ! 5
ars Not due Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - - -
(ii) Others 49,00 - 49.00
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - =
(v) Unbilled 97.28
Tatal 49,00 - 146.28
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction Total
Particulars Not due Less than | year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 0.17 - 017
(ii) Others 16.10 - 16.10
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - -
(v) Unbilled 104.01 - 104.01
Tatal 120.28 - 120.28
Provisions
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for gratuity 1.71 6.48
Tatal 7.7 6.48
Other non-financial liabilities
As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory Dues payable 7.69 9.69
Total 7.69 9.69

The space has been left blank intentionally
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13 Share capital

Company Limited)

Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Authorised share capital
22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 (March 31, 2024: 22,50,00,000 equity shares) 2,250.00 2,250.00
2,250.00 2,250.00
Issited, subscribed and paid-up share capital
20,32,18,903 Equily shares of Rs.10 each (March 31, 2024: 16,25,21,232) 2,032.19 1,625.21
Total 2,032.19 1,625.21

(a) Reconciliation of sharcs outstanding at the beginning and at the cnd of the reporting year

As al March 31, 2025

As at March 31,2024

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 16,25,21,232 1,625.21 10,00,00,000 1,000.00
Add: Tssued during the year 4,06,97,671 406.98 6,25,21,232 625.21
At the end of the year 20,32,18,903 2,032.19 16,25,21,232 1,625.21

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity share, having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to their share
of the paid up equity share capital, The holder of the equity shares shall be entitled to dividend as and when declared by the Company in proportion to the members of share held, In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the cquity shares will be entitled to share in the residual assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the

number of equity shares held.

(c) Particulars of Shares lield by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates:

As at As at
Riimieiat thesMrehioer March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Equity shares with voting rights
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited) 20,32,18,903 -

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formerly know as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

(d) Particulars of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

- 16,25,21,232

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Name of the shareholder NumbEr 0! ghires % holding Number of shares Y% holding
held held
Equity shares
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely known as 20,32,18,903 100% - -
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Privale Limited)
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formerly know as - - 16,25,21,232 100%
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
(e) Particulars of shareholding
Name of the sharcholder As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024
Number of shares o " Number of shares Fy
el % holding held %o holding
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely known as = &
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited) 20,32,18,903 100%
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formerely know as
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) and nominees - - 16,25,21,232 100%

(N Aggregale number of shares issued for consideration

There are no shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares or alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without consideration other than cash, or bought back during the period

of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Nates to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

14 Other equity

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings (i) (943.74) (368.55)
Sccurities premium (ii) 682.81 389.79
Total (260.93) 21.24
(i) Retained earnings
Asal As ot
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Balance at the commencement of the year (368.55) 10.50
Add: Profit/ (Loss) during the year (575.38) (377.80)
Add: Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans (net of tax) 0.19 (1.25)
Balance at the end of the year (943.74) (368.55)
(ii) Sccuritics premium
Particulars Azal As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the commencement of the year 389.79 -
Add: Premium received on issue of equity shares 293.02 389.79
Balance at the end of the year 682.81 389.79

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings:

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the aperations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading "Retained Earnings". At the end of the

year, the profit (loss) after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained earnings,

(i) Securities premium

Securitics premium is used to record the premium on issuc of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpose in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013.
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

15A

15B

16

17

18

ot

Fees and commission income

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fees and commission income 27.58 19.42
Total 27.58 19.42

Disaggregation of Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Geographical markets
Within India 27.58 19.42
Outside India - -
Total 27.58 19.42
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 27.58 19.42
Services transferred over time - -
Total 27.58 19.42

Interest income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on financial asscts measured at amortised cost :
(i) Fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds - 3.56
(ii) Interest On Bonds - 5:52
Total - 9.08

Net gain on fair value changes

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss on investments :
(i) Realised gain on sale of mutual fund 74.94 25.66
(ii) Unrealised gain on mutual fund 66.90 61.08
Total 141.84 86.74

Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost :

(i) Interest on unwinding of security deposits 0.38 0.31
Other income 1.05 0.26
Foreign exchange gains (net) 0.02 -
Total 1.45 0.57

Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 8) 1.27 1.60
Total 1.27 1.60
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

19

20

21

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, allowances, incentives and bonus 230.35 145.78
Contribution to provident and other funds 5.05 351
Gratuity 239 1.71
Share based payments 37.13 11.75
Staff welfarc expenscs 7.74 2.81
Total 282.66 165.56

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 222 1.00
Depreciation on right to use assets 7.45 6.62
Total 9.67 7.62
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Professional and consulting charges 28.29 43.49
Transaction and other related charges 16.53 2.24
Mutual fund expenses 7.24 8.91
Software, server and platform charges 5035 21.19
Rent and maintenance 19.08 12.55
Communication expenses 2.13 0.21
Rates and taxes 1.11 12.20
Travelling and conveyance expenses 4.71 2,95
Marketing and business promotion expenses 316.34 201.27
Payments to auditor

-Statutory audit 1.00 0.85
Director’s sitting fee 4.80 4.39
Bank charges - 0.01
Foreign exchange losses (net) - 0.08
Realised loss on sale of bonds - 15.50
Miscellaneous expenses 1.07 0.78
Total 452,65 326.62




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
22 Income Taxes

A. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tux
In respect of current period - "
(ii) relating to earlier years - (0.24)
Total current tax expense - (0.24)
Deferred tux
In respect of current period - (71.55)
Total deferred tax expense - (7.55)
Income tax expense reported in the stat t of Profit and Loss - (7.79)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax (575.38) (385.59)
Tax at Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024 : 25.168%) - -
Effect of
Tax on expense not tax deductible - -
Others - (0.24)
Total tax cxpense - (0.24)
C. Current tax assets (Net)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax assets (Net) 2.49 1.98
D. Current tax liabilities (Net)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax liabilities(net) Z “
E. Deferred Tax
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or
loss 16.84 1.54
Total deferred tax liabilities 16.84 1.54
Deferred tax assets
Property plant & Equipment 0.27 0.62
Disallowance of Expenses 0.60 1.90
Disallowance under Section 35DD of the Income Tax Act, 1961 1.72 1.72
On carry forward losses* 15.96 105.15
Total deferred tax assets 18.55 109.39

Net deferred tax liabilities/ (Asset)**

** Note: The Company has not recognised DTA for the current year considering that there are no profits available against which DTA can be utilised.

Futher refer note 22F. Unrecognised deferred tax assets.

T




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

22 Income Taxes (confinued)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

Recognised in

For the year ended 31 March 2025 As at 1 April 2024
profit or loss

Recognised in OCI  As at 31 March 2025

Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carried at
fair value through profit or loss / other comprehensive income

Gross deferred tax liabilities - s - "

Deferred tax assets on:

Property plant & Equipment a 5 = e
Disallowance of Expenses - = . -
Disallowance under Section 35DD of the Income Tax Act,1961 - - & =

Gross deferred tax assets - - . “

Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets - “ = i

Recognised in

For the year ended 31 March 2024 As at 1 April 2023
profit or loss

Recognised in OCT  As at 31 March 2024

Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carried at

fair value through profit or loss / other comprchensive income (10.01) 10.01 - -
Gross deferred tax liabilities (10.01) 10.01 - -
Deferred tax assefs on:

Property plant & Equipment - - - -
Disallowance of Expenses 0.15 (0.15) - -
Disallowance under Section 35DD of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2.30 (2.30) - -
Gross deferred tax assets 245 (2.45) - -
Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets (7.56) 7.56 - -

F. Unrecognised deferred tax assets on losses

Particulars* As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Gross Amount Unrecognised Gross Amount Unrecognised tax
tax effect effect
Tax losses (business losses) 481.39 121.16 440.52 110.87
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) - - - -
Total unrecognised deferred tax assets 481.39 121.16 440.52 110.87

*The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset as deferred tax assets should be recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

23 Employee benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution are made to Provident fund in India for employees. The contributions are made to registered Provident fund administered by the Government. The expenses recognised

during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 2.39 million for the year ended March 31, 2025 (INR 1.7 million for the year ended March 31, 2024).

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the

number of years of service.

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31,2024

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 1.89 5.82 1.39 5.09
Total employee benefit obligations 1.89 5.82 1.39 5.09
(i) Reconcilintion of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
Ason As on

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of year 6.49 0.60
Current service cost 1.93 1.71
Interest cost 0.46 -
Actuarial loss / (zain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographic assumption (0.80) -
b) changes in financial assumptions 0.20 -
¢) experience adjustments 041 1.25
Benefits paid (0.92) -
Transfer In / (Out) (0.05) 2.93
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at year end 7.71 6.49

(i) _Expenses recognised during the year

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Current service cost 193 1.71
Interest cost 0.46 -
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 2,39 1.71

(iii) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial Losses/ (Gains) on obligation for the year {0.20) 1.25
Net Expense/(Incame) for the period recognised in OCI (0.20) 1.25

(iv) Actuarial assumptions

Description Gratuity as on March 31
2025 2024
Mortality Table (LIC) 100% of TALM 2012-14 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14y

Discount rate (p.a) % 7%
Attrition Rate

Up to 30 years 49.37% 30.38%

From 31 to 44 years 27.88% 27.54%

Above 44 years 43.24% 25.00%
Rate of escalation in salary (p.a) 12.00% 12.00%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years

(v) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

Particulars

For the year ended
AL

Discount rate : +1%
Discount rate : -1%
Salary escalation rate : +1%
Salary escalation rate : -1%
Attrition rate: +1%*
Altrition rate: -1%*

(0.27)
0.31
021

(0.19)

(0.06)
0.08

For the year ended

(0.25)
027
020

(0.20)

0.06

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet The Mortality does not have a significant impact on the Liability ,
hence are not considered a significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensitivity analysis. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis

did not change compared to the prior period.

The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows

Gratuity
Expected contribution to the fund during the year ending March 31, 2024 Unfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Time period (in years)
Within | year 1.89
2 - 5 years 5.08
6 -10 years 239
Above 10 year 0.73




Groww Asset Management Limited (Farmerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the finuncial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amaunts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

24 Financlal Instruments - Falr values and risk management

A Accounting classifications and fair values

Fair valucs are categorised it different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level | - Quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels o liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are abservable for the asset or liability, cither directly (i.¢. as prices) or i

Level 3 - Inputs for the assels or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

irectly (i.e. derived from prices)

The following table shows the camrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hicrarchy

As at Mareh 31, 2025

Fair value

Carrying value

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortised Tatal Level 1  LevelZ Leveld Total
costs carrying
amount
Financial assels
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.19 0.19 - - - -
Trade receivahles - - 24.26 24,26 - - - -
Investments 1,792.03 246 - 1,794.49 1,792.03 s 246 1,794.49
Other financial assels - - 1.27 1.27 - - - -
1,792.03 246 1572 1,420.21 1,792.03 - 2.46 1,794.49
Financlal Habillties
Trade payubles 5 146.28 146.28 A - - =
= 146.28 146.28 - = . S
As at March 31, 2024
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FVTrL FVTOCI  Amartised Total Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
cosls carrying
amount
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.08 0.08 - - - -
Trade receivables - # 13.06 13.06 ) - - -
Investments 1,728.31 246 - 1,730.77 1,728.31 - 246 1,730,77
Other financial assels - - 8.05 8.05 - - - -
1,724.31 2.46 2119 1,751.96 1,728.31 - .46 1,730.77
Financial Habilities
Trade paynbles - 120.28 120.28 - - - -
Lease linbilities - - 17.40 17.40
- 137.68 137.68 - - - =

The company does not have any financial asset o liabilitics measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,

For investments measured at FVOCH (Level 3) the company has cansidered the most recent available valuation of investments whose fair value is determined basis net asset value,

The company has not separately disclosed the fair values for financial assets and lisbilities other than investments, because their carrying anlolnts are a reasonable approximation of the fir values.

B Valuation technique used to determine fair values

Specific valuation technique to value financind instruments like:
i. Use of quoted market prices for financial instruments traded in active markets.

company

d cash flow analysis for other financinl instruments.

i, The Fair values for inancial assets and liabilities ofher than investments ore disclosed ot there carrying value as their cammying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair values.

24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

C Financial risk management

The Company has exposure (o the following risks arising from financial instruments:

(i) Credi risk;
) Liquidity risk; and
(i) Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overll responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the C:
risks faced by the Company, t set appropriate risk limits and controls and to munitor risks and adherence o limits. Risk ma
Company's activities. The Company, through its trining and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a

obligations.

I Credlt risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss Lo the Company il'a customer or
tisk arises from cash held with hanks and financil institutions, as well as eredit exposure to clients, including trade receivable, The maximum exposure lo credit risk

to a financial i

1 and

ive conlrol

fails to meet its

and arises pri

ompany’s risk management fmmework. The Company’s risk management policics arc established to identify and analyse the
ent pulicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect clunges in market conditions and the
in which all employees understand their rales and

lly from the Company's receivables from customers. Credit
is equal ta the carrying value of the financial assets, The

abjective af managing counterparty eredit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterpartics, taking inta account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

“The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on trade reccivables for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was INR Nil.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalents is limited as the Company gencrally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domiestic credit rating agencies.

Trade RecelvablesO

‘To measure the expected eredit losses,

trade receivable) is

d for

ofloss

short duration there are certain instances of delay in collection. The Group has computed expected eredit loss due to delay in callection.

the Company has a large number of custamer base with shared credit risk chameteristics. As per palicy of the Company, trade receivable to the extent nat covered by collaternl (i.e. unsecured
and the anount of loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Trade reccivable of the group are of short duration. Though trade receivables are due arc




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company has managed its
liquidity and working capital requirements through cash generated from operations and through intermittent short term borrowings. The Company has sufficient
short term fund based lines, which provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest credit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is
perceived.

The tables below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at:

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2025 Carrying amount 6 months orless  Duein 6 - 12 Dueinl1-2  Due More than
months year 2 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 146.28 146.28 - - -
Other financial liabilities

Lease liabilities = = u - -

146.28 146.28 - - &

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2024 Carrying amount 6 months orless  Duein 6 -12 Duein1-2  Due More than
months year 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 120.28 120.28 - - -
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17.40 4.46 4.87 8.06 -
137.68 124.74 4.87 8.06 -

iii, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctvate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of
three types of risks: interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financial
assets and liabilities. The Company is not exposed to any significant market risks.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel interest rates. The interest
rate risk can also impact the provision for retiral benefits. The Company generally utilises fixed rate borrowings and therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in the market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

(b) Currency risk

Forcign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can
arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

The Company does not have into any foreign currency denominated assets or liaiblities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. Accordingly, the Company is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk.




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

¢. Maturity Analysis of Assets And Liabilities
The below table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Less than 12 (More than 12 (Less than 12 (More than 12
months) months) months) months)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.19 - 0.08 -
Trade receivables 24.26 - 13.06 -
Investments 1,792.03 2.46 1,728.31 2.46
Other financial assels - 1.27 3.87 4.18
Current tax assets (net) 2.49 - - 1.98
Property, plant and equipment - 5.79 - 2.51
Right-of-use assets - - - 17.38
Other non-financial assets 104.45 - 26.47 -
1,923.42 9.52 1,771.79 28.51
Liabilities
Trade payables
i. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - - 0.17 -
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 146.28 - 120.11 -
small enterprises
Lease liability - - 9.33 8.06
Provisions 1.89 582 1.39 5.09
Other non-financial liabilities 7.69 - 9.69 -
155.86 5.82 140.69 13.16

iv. Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Company monitors the return on capital and its objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize sharcholder
value. During the year the company has raised funds by way of borrowings and the cash and bank balances including liquid investments significantly exceeds the
borrowings accordingly the net debt is Nil and consequently net gearing ratio is also Nil.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

25 Contingent liabilities and commitments (lo the extent not provided for)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Contingent Liabilitics = -
b) Commitments
Estimaled amount of contracts remaining Lo be exccuted on capilal account and not provided for : . -
¢) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts - E
The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

26 Earnings per share (EPS)‘

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Piticuliivs For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (In INR Millions) (575.38) (377.80)
Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic EPS (In Millions) 182.94 122.62
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares - -
Weighted average ber of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS (In lakhs) 182.94 122.62
Basic earnings per share (3.15) (3.08)
Diluted earnings per share (3.15) (3.08)
Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00
27 Related party disclosures
A Names of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have taken place
Name Type
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely Holding Company (From August 22, 2024)
known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private
Limited)
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known Fellow Subsidiary (w,e.f Aug 22, 2024)
as Nextbillion Technolopy Private Limited)
Groww Serv Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary (w,e.f May 02, 2023)
Groww Trustee Limited Fellow Subsidiary (w,e.f May 02, 2023)
Roshan Dave Key management personnel (w,e.f May 02, 2023)
Varun Gupta Key management personnel (w,e.f May 02, 2023)
Pratik Lakhotia Key management personnel (wie.f May 02, 2023)
Ashish Goel Independent Director
Neeru chaudhry Independent Dircctor (till February 19,2025)
Anamika Agarwal Independent Director (w.e.f February 19,2025)
Harsh Jain Key managemenl personnel (w,e.f May 02, 2023)
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

27 Related party disclosures (Continued)

B. The following transactions were cartied out with the related partics in the ordinary course of business:

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

Far the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Issue of Complusory Convertible Preference shares
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely Software, Server & Platform Charges 14.63 8.30
known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Professional and Consulting Charges 13.77 16.80
Limited) Share based payments 37.13 11.75
Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 166.41 125.18
Reimbursement paid (200.49) (85.46)
Expenses incurred by Company on behall of related party (0.21) 4.27)
Reimbursement recovered 2.88 1.60
Rent expense 11.05 4.36
Issue of equity shares (including securities premium) (500.00) -
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known |Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 0.07 12,72
Advances recovered
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party (0.13) (0.37)
Reimbursement recovered 0.13 0.31
Rent expense - 281
Issue of equity shares (including securities premium) - 1,015.00
Groww Trustee Limited Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 0.06 0.92
Reimbursement paid (0.06) -
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party - (0.92)
Reimbursement paid -
Rental Income (0.10) (0.23)
Neobillion Fintech Private Limited |Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party - (0.10)
Reimbursement paid - -
Reimbursement recovered -
Reimbursement recovered 0.03 -
Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company 0.11 -
Reimbursement paid 0.00 -
Key management personnel Short term employee benefits 2391 19.97
Post employement benefits* 1.34 1.75
Independent Director Sitting fees 4.80 4.39
C.  Outstanding balances
Related Party Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Neabillion Fintech Private Limited Trade Payable - -

Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as
Billionbrains Capital Private Limited)

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known
as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely
known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private

Groww Trustee Limited

Key management personnel

Receivable from related parly
Trade Payable

Receivable from related party
Trade Payable

Receivable from related party
Trade Payable

Trade Receivable

Receivable from rclated party

Provision post employement benefits*

(()Ti 1

(40.85)

0.03

(2.22)

0.19
0.07

(39.72)
2.67

(0.92)

0.23

(1.75)

*+Transactions and balances with key management personnel for the year ended March 31, 2025 is basis allocation for gratuity of key management personnel obtained from actuary.




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

28 Share Based Payments

The holding Company has Employee Stock Option Scheme namely "Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024 (formerly known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures
Private Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024" (‘BGV ESOS 2024") , which was replaced from Groww Inc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("GSIP 2017") subsequent to the approval of the scheme
of merger between Groww Inc., State of Delaware, USA and the Company by the Hon'ble NCLT via merger order dated 28th March 2024,

BGV ESOS 2024 is prepared basis the same terms and conditions as of GSIP 2017 except on the exercise period of the options which is modified to twenty years from existing ten years and exercise
price has been modified to INR 10 from exercise price $0.27 - $91.3453 for all the options. Further, the options of GSIP 2017 have been adjusted for swap ratio i.e., for every one (1) option held
under GSIP 2017, such option holders shall be granted two point two (2.2) options under BGY ESOS 2024 as applied to shareholders and have been restated as if they were available of earliest
reporting period in the restated consolidated financial information, irrespective of their actual date,

On 28 June 2024, the board of directors of holding company approved the BGV ESOS 2024 for issue of stock options to the permanent employees including Directors of the Company (other than
Promoter(s) or person belonging to the Promoter Group of the Company, Independent Directors, if any, and Directors holding directly or indirectly more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of
the Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as an “Employee(s)”). The board of directors has constituted an ESOP committee for implementation and administration of BGV ESOS 2024.
The employee selected by the ESOP committee from time to time will be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, viz., continuing employment and subject to
performance parameters defined in the BGV ESOS 2024,

Stock options granted under BGV ESOS 2024/GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective letter of Grant/stock option grant notice. The company/erstwhile
holding company has issued stock options with a vesting period of 12 - 48 months with a cliff of 12 months and fully vested stock options.

For stock options granted under BGV ESOS 2024, the weighted average fair value of options during the year ended 31 March 2025 was INR 20.31 and for stock options granted under GSIP 2017, the
weighted average fair value of options during the year 31 March 2024 - $18.48. As at 31 March 2025, the weighted average contractual remaining life of options is 14.81 years.

Eligbile employees were provided with an alternative of cash or share based payment for performance bonuses. Pursuant to the same, the Company paid performance bonus in the form of stock
oplions amounting to INR 4.10 Million (31 March 2024 - INR 5.46 Million) which is included as part of Salaries, allowances and bonus.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 -
(i) the holding Company has issued bonus in the ratio of 14:1 to all the existing shareholders whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 9 August 2024. Hence, each option
granted under BGV ESOS 2024 would be eligible for 15 equity shares upon excerise.

(ii) the holding Company has further issued bonus in the ratio of 10:1 to all the existing shareholders whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 29 January 2025. Hence,
each option granted under BGV ESOS 2024 would be eligible for 1.5 equity shares upon excerise over and above point (i).

(iii) The holding Company has sub-divided 1 equity share having a face value of INR 10/~ each fully paid up into 5 equity shares having a face value of INR 2/- each fully paid up. Hence, each option
granted under BGV ESOS 2024 has been sub-divided into 5 options with an excercise price of INR 2/-. The effect of the same have been restated as if they were available of earliest reporting period in
the financial statements, irrespective of their actual date,

Accordingly options granted shall have conversion ratio as below:

(i) options granted upto 9 August 2024 shall have a conversion ratio of 16.5:1.

(ii) options granted from 9 August 2024 to 28 January 2025 shall have a conversion ratio of 1.1:1.
(iii) options granted from 29 January 2025 shall have a conversion ratio of 1:1.

Reconciliation of share options during the financial year:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 20,72,005 -
- Granted/ (Transferred In) 45,39,599 20,72,005
- Forfeited/( Transferred Out) (3,09,185) -
Outstanding as at the end of the year 63,02,419 20,72,005
Vested as at the end of the year 16,09,565 19,96,625

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated at the grant date using arm’s length price of the stock options computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the stock options were granted. The inputs used to measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dividend yield (% p.a.) 0% 0%
Expected volatility (% p.a.) 48.6% - 49.1%] 45% - 47.2%
Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.) 6.69% - 7.0%) 3.6% - 4.6%
Expected life of option (years) 10.75 - 11.77 6.50 -7.00
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millians unless atherwise stated)

29 Ducs to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministry o’ Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
custamers the Entreprencurs Memorandum Number as ullocated after filing of the M dum. A lingly. the discl : in respect of the amounts payable ta such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has been made in the
financial based on il ion received and available with the company, Further, in s view, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micca, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {'the Act') is not expected lo be material.

As at Asat
Particul 2
AEieRaE March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.
- Principal amount - 0.17
- Interest due thereon - &

The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year - -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

but without adding the interest under this Act

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, till actually paid 1o the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure.

Total outstanding principal dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables (Note 10) - 0.17

30 Segment Reporting
The ultimate holding company prepares the ¢
slatements.

1 1

d financial In

with Ind AS 108 on operating segments, the Company has not disclosed the infc ion in the dalone financial

31 No funds have been advanced or loancd or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including forcign entities
("I liaries") with the und fing, whether recorded in writing ar otherwise, that the [ntermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not
received any fund from any partics (funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indicectly lend or invest in other persons er entitics identified by or behalf af the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any gurantee, sccurily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

32 Scheme of Arrangement
The Board of Direetors of the Company on Junc 25, 2021, considered and approved the demerger of Altemnative Investment Funds (AIF) and Portfolio Munagement Services (PMS) business (collectively
the "Demerged Business") of the Company to Indiabulls Investment Management Limited (formerly Indiabulls Venture Capital Management Company Limited) ("IIML"), by way of a scheme of
arrangement ("the Scheme of Arrangement”), subject to the approvals/ permissions of the regulatory authorities in terms of the provisions of Section 230 ta 232 of the Companics Act, 2013 and other
annlicable laws.

Consequently, the Company has reccived the formal order dated September 13, 2022 issued by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, vide order reference No.
NCLT/Reg//FO/2022/1087 and requisite approval trom the Securilies and Exchange Board of India for implementation of the Scheme of Armangement. Accordingly, the Company made necessary
adjustments to its books of accounts to give effect to the Scheme of Arrangement with the Appointed Date as April 1, 2021 ("Appointed Date"). As a result. the Company has recorded goodwill ( net ) of
Rs. 1,020.59 lakhs which has been adjusted in the Reserves and Surplus as at March 31, 2023 . As stipulated under the Scheme of Arrangement, the Company has transferred all property and rights and
liabilitics and duties and employees perfaining to the Demerged Business to IIML, Fuither, the Company has made requisite submissions with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana and reduced
its authorized and issued and paid up equity share capital from Rs. 17,000 Jakhs divided into 17,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 cach ta Rs. 10,000 lakhs divided into 10,00,00,000 equily shares of Rs.
10 cach, in compliance with the Scheme of Armangement.

The Scheme of Arrangement has accordingly been given effect in the financial statements with effect from the Appointed Date in accordance with the Scheme ol Arrangement and the applicable
accounting standards. As mentioned above, the Earnings per Equity Share and the figures in Tespect of the current year are comparabl with the previous comparable year ted
33 Key Ratios

Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xvi) of Division IIT of Schedule 11 amendment, disclosure of ratios, is not applicable to the Company as it is in assel mangement business and nol
an NBFC registered under Section 45-TA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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